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First Street,
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Background

1. The Historic Resources Branch received a telephone call from Mrs.
Kory Greenaway, enquiring about financial help to rehabilitate her summer home
at Laveanham.

2. The building in question was built in 1901-02 as the Rossendale
Orange Hall. There is evidence that it doubled in use as a school prior to
its move to Lavenham. This move occurred sometime between 1911 and 1914,

Once there, the building was enlarged, and continued as an Orange Hall, with
occasional usage as a school. It eventually became the Lavenham Community
Hall, and was subsequently replaced by a newer building. It has since been
purchased by Kory and John Greenaway for storage and a summer home.

3. This building is a plain, one storey wood frame structure with few
distinguishing features. It is badly dilapidated, and in structurally poor
condition. The interior has been largely stripped of any features it may have

possessed. It has been and is poorly maintained.




[image: image4.jpg](a) History - From a careful examination of newspaper sources, the scant
information about this building would suggest the following scenario. During
1900, an Orange Lodge (#1734) was formed at Rossendale,l approximately five
miles northeast of the present site of Lavenham. The following year, a hall
was erected which opened on 21 February 1902.2 It is suspected that this
was an isolated rural building near Rossendale Cemetery.3 After 1905,
present village of Lavenham grew up, approximately one mile west of the
cemetery location. The site soon became more important for Lavenham
Orangemen, who probably formed as offshoot from Rossendale Lodge, c. 1910.4
It is also probable that the Orange Hall also functioned (Plate 1) as the
first Rossendale-Lavenham School. That latter structure appears to have borne
a close resemblance to the Orange Hall without its present additions. The
school also stood around the same area as the Hall. During 1911, talk was
rife that the Hall would be moved into Lavenham, and it is probable that its
first village location dated from that year, and it may have been known as
True Blue Lodge. (Plates 2, 3)

It has subsequently been moved from its 1911 position on Lot 29, Block
2,5 to the land on Block 1 bought by Kory and John Greenway, lots 32, 33,

i i 6
and 34, where it is used as the Greenways' summer house. (Map 1)

(B) Style - This is a plain, rectangular building, commonly met with in many
parts of Canada. It has a gable roof, with sash windows on all sides. This
type of building was easy, fast and inexpensive for financially strapped rural

residents to construct.

(c) Construction - This is a simple wood frame building.




[image: image5.jpg]Plate 1

Rossendale-Lavenham School, located east of Lavenham,
c. 1905. For all intents and purposes, the Orange Hall and the
School were probably the same building. This view, therefore,
shows Lavenham Hall without the additions which disfigure it
today. (W.E. Aikens, Homestead,Winnipeg: Premier, 1980.)





[image: image6.jpg]A view of Lavenham, Manitoba 1915,

Plate 2 In this view, the Orange Hall is marked by the X. It
had already received the rear addition, but is clearly the same
structure seen in Figure 1. (Aikens, Homestead.)

Plate 3

By 1925, the Hall had assumed its present appearance,
minus, of course, the front porch amd years of dilapidation. It
was also used from time to time to handle the overflow from the
nearby school (Y). (Aikens, Homestead.)
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Map 1 This shows the two locations of the Orange Hall after its

appearance in Lavenham. Site 1 was its location from c. 1914 to
1977. The present Community Hall is on the old site. Site 2 is
the Greenaway property on First Street, the location of the old
Hall from 1977 to the present. The school shown in Plate 3 is

located on Lot J, and is now a private residence. (Aikens,
Homestead.)



[image: image8.jpg](D) Design - This originally consisted of one large room (the hall) with a
small entrance porch., It was a typical design for such structures. For tis

group gathering function, it would have worked well.

(E) Inteior - This has been largely gutted out by subsequent owners. The
interior walls are still covered by V-jointed, tongue and groove boarding
which may be original to the edifice. Any other fixtures which may have been
attached, however, have been removed. The interior space arrangement is that

of one large room.

(F) Integrity -

(i) Lavenham Hall is not on its original site. This is at least its third
location since its erection in 1901-02, and was moved here in 1977.

(ii) This building has suffered much alteration. To date this was
accomplished through an addition to the rear which matches the original
building in a somewhat indifferent manner; as well, a more recent addition has
been made to the front of the place, in the form of a large entrance porch.
Assorted windows have been partially filled in as suited the needs of the
owners, and the interior has been gutted.

(iii) Lavenham Hall is not in good structural condition, and is in fact on its
last legs as a building. There is significant damage to this building via the
moving and weathering processes. There is considerable rot in the siding, and
where repairs have been attempted, these have been of a patch-up nature and

detrimental to the appearance of the edifice.

(G) Streetscape - This building now stands at the rear of Lot 13, Block 1,

which is owned by Simon Henry, an uncle of Kory Greenaway. The location of



[image: image9.jpg]the hall is on lots 32, 33 and 34 on First street,7 though the street is not
physically apparent, and access is gained through the driveway of Lot 13. A
bluff with its attendant bush is located at the west side of the Greenaway

property.

(H)  Architect/Contractor - Unknown in both cases.

(1) Person/Institution - The Orange Order, for which the building had a very

strong following among the early settlers of the Lavenham area. The order was
essentially a popular nativist organization that was Irish Protestant in
origin. Many of the early settlers in the Rossendale-Lavenham were of that
origin, and had come out to the area from Huron County, Ontario in the

18905.8

(J) Event - None known,

(K) Context - The Orange Hall served several purposes other than being the
meeting hall for the order. It also functioned as the major social centre in
the area,

It was quite an 'Orange Lodge' centre and they used to

have their picnics as well. ... We had a lot of dances

in the Orange Hall. They were all night affairs, not

just until midnight ... that restriction came later.?

As well as being the community centre, the hall also served, for a
10

number of years, sometime after 1912, as a school for the higher grades,

the Lavenham School being too small for the 40 odd students.



[image: image10.jpg](L) Landmark - The former Orange Hall is one of a number of small to
moderate~-sized frame buildings erected in the town. It is plain and
indistinguishable from houses in the area in terms of size.

It is also dilapidated to a point where it is probable that it may be
removed in the future. While the Greenaways have put a portion of the
building on wooden piers, there is considerable rot in the wood siding. The
structure does not even occupy its former prominent location, indeed, it is
somewhat hidden between some bushes and the area houses.

Only a few Orange Lodges have been thus far identified by the Historic
Resources Branch. These include the former Moore Park building, now found
near Justice. (Plate 4) It is a similar structure to Lavenham, except that
it was given a "boom-town" front in a modest effort to make it appear more
substantial. Yet another Orange Lodge was that of L.0O.L. #1733 at Tyndall,
and this was a more ambitious structure. (Plate 5) It was erected in 1906 at
a cost of about $25,000, and was built of locally quarried limestone. In
fact, all the stone and mortar were donated by two brother members - William
Henry and William Garson - who owned the quarry at Garson.12 The latter
gentleman had also donated all the stone for the Scott Memorial Orange Hall
built at Winnipeg in 1902.13 (See accompanying paper on the Scott Hall).
There is also an Orange Hall at Portage la Prairie, built in 1882, which has
now closed. It is in very poor condition, and is currently being used by an
autobody shop for storage. It will probably be demolished sometime in the
future.

The Orange Lodge was a major social institution of the nineteenth and
early twentieth centuries. It was an extreme Protestant organization, and
definitely anti-Catholic and xenophobic in nature. The organization

functioned well as long as it existed in isolation and away from members of



[image: image11.jpg]Plate 4 Moore Park Orange Hall, SE 18-12-18W, Municipality
of Elton. This structure was moved from Moore P ark to
Justice in 1954, and has been used as a-cattle shelter since
that time. It was probably built around 1900. (Butterfield,
Architectural Heritage: Brandon and Area Planning District.)
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[image: image13.jpg]the groups it opposed. With the integration of disparate elements within
Canadian society after World War I, the Orange movement began to fall by the
way, as the former members mixed more freely with those element so recently
despised. As a result, most of the Orange Lodges have closed, and there is
probably only one - the Scott Lodge in Winnipeg - still trying to exist amid a
declining membership. The open anti-Catholicism and xenophobia has been
dropped, though the organization still appears to be Irish-Protestant oriented.

On the other hand, despite these negative qualities, the Orange Lodges
were a specialized fraternal help organization. In an age before social
security and the welfare state, there were many national groups which
maintained fraternal bodies such as the Knights of Columbus, Knights of
Pythias, the Independent Order of Oddfellows, the Masons, the St.
Jean—Baptisté Society, the Patrick's Society, etc. Each had their own
particular following, and their own specific likes and dislikes. The
Orangemen were merely the most prominent in a Canada then dominated by White
Anglo-Saxon Protestantism, but they were not the only group to dislike other
groups on the grounds of origin or religion.

The Orange Hall was a feature of many Protestant towns, villages and
cities, just as Catholic or German or Polish Halls were a feature of
communities where those groups located. With the decline in memberships, the
fraternal halls physically declined, as maintenance was postponed. When
memberships fell below a threshold, the lodges closed, and the buildings were
often sold or given to their communities, to be used for community purposes,
as was done at Lavenham prior to its purchase by the Greenaways. Other
buildings were sold and removed for other purposes, such as that at Moore
Park. As a result, many former fraternal buildings, still masquerade as

community halls, granaries, stores and other sundry uses.



[image: image14.jpg]Thus, it becomes as difficult to place the Lavenham Hall in perspective
as it is to place the Scott Hall into its place. The Winnipeg building was
unique among its fellows, while the Lavenham structure is difficult to
categorize because its counterparts have become so severely dispersed. At
best, one can state that this poor, dilapidated building was typical of rural
Orange Halls, basing this upon the limited examples found at Moore Park and
Portage la Prairie. At the same time, however, better buildings such as the
Tyndall structure may have been atypical. The questions must also be asked,
however, as to the architectural relationship of Orange fraternal halls to the
halls of other fraternal groups.

Fraternal lodges, regardless of how their particular inclinations or
beliefs coloured their activities, were major features of rural Manitoba in
the earlier part of this century. This was largely because of their
benevolent and social functions. Often the halls doubled as schools,
churches, etc. in recognition of their community function. As a phenomena,
the time of the lodges has largely passed, and where they still exist, their
functions have become limited to beer parlours, bingo palaces or dance halls.
Often the fact that a building possesses a large hall is the only asset to the
owners, for a hall can be rented for weddings, funerals, etc. in order to pay
the taxes and some maintenance to the building. It is indeed a far cry from

the "glory days" of these organizations.
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